ලංකාණ්ඩුවේ ගැසට්

THE CEYLON GOVERNMENT GAZETTE

ලංක 11,836 — 1959 අගෝස්තු 21 වැනි සිකුරාද — 21.8.1959

No. 11,836 - FRIDAY, AUGUST 21, 1959

(Published by Authority)

PART IV-LOCAL GOVERNMENT

(Separate paging is given to each Part in order that it may be filed separately)

•			PAGE	·			PAGE
Local Government Notification	18		703	Statements of Revenue and E	xpenditure	• •	_
Posts—Vacant		• • .		D-3-4-			703
Examinations, Results of Exam	minations, &c.		704	Budgets *	••	• •	, 00
By-laws		• •	705	Sale of Properties	• • .	• •	708
	Authorities I	Elections			•	•	710
Ordinance	• • • •		707	Miscellaneous Notices	• •	• •	710

PART V published with this issue contains List of Books &c.

Local Government Notifications

L. D.-B. 125/34-L. G. D.-GC. 51/1.

THE CEMETERIES AND BURIALS ORDINANCE Order under Section 5

ORDER made by the Minister of Local Government and Housing under section 5 (1) of the Cemeteries and Burials Ordinance (Chapter 181), as modified by the Proclamation published in Gazette Extraordinary No. 9,773 of September 24, 1947.

VIMALA WIJEWARDENE,
Minister of Local Government and Housing. Colombo, July 21, 1959.

ORDER

- 1. A general cemetery on the land described in Schedule A hereto is hereby established for the burial or the cremation of the dead within the limits specified and defined in Schedule B
- 2. The general cemetery established under paragraph 1 of this Order shall be wholly exempt from the operation of sections 10, 15, 16 and 23 of the Cemeteries and Burials Ordinance (Chapter 181).

SCHEDULE A

All that area of land called Puswelahena-Watta, in extent A0. R2. P38, situated in the village of Mummana in Medapattu Korale East, in Katugampola Hatpattuwa, in the Kurunegala District of the North-Western Province, and more particularly described in Plan No. 7/58 dated February 25, 1958, made by Mr. C. L. Wickramanayake, Licensed Surveyor of Gampaha, and bounded as follows: bounded as follows:

North—by land claimed by A. P. Jayatilake; East and South—by the remaining portion of the same land; West—by the Village Committee Road.

SCHEDULE B

All that area of land comprising the village of Wettewa in the Hamangalla village area in the Kurunegala District.

L. D.—B. 22/53—L. G. D.—BC. 518. THE ELECTRICITY ACT, No. 19 OF 1950

REGULATIONS made by the Chavakachcheri Town Council, under section 46 of the Electricity Act, No. 19 of 1950, with the approval of the Minister of Local Government and Housing given after consultation with the Minister of Transport and

V. C. JAYASURIYA, Permanent Secretary . Ministry of Local Government and Housing. Colombo, August 5, 1959.

Regulations

- 1. In these regulations-
- "Act" means the Electricity Act, No. 19 of 1950;
- "licence" means the licence issued under section 2 of the Act to the Chavakachcheri Town Council; and
- "licensee" means the Chavakachcheri Town Council.
- 2. Any person desirous of obtaining the use of electrical energy from the licensee—
 - (a) shall, at least fourteen days before the supply is required, make application to the licensee in such form as may be provided for the purpose by the licensee; and
 - (b) shall pay in advance to the licensee the charges for the service cable, or if the licensee so requires, enter into a written contract with the licensee under section 33 of the Act.
- 3. Every consumer of electrical energy shall pay for such energy at the rates specified in the licence.
- 4. (1) That portion of the service cable which is consumer's premises, the transformers, the main fuse, the meter and the board shall remain the property of the licensee and on no account shall they be moved or handled by any person other than an authorised employee of the licensee.
- (2) The consumer shall be responsible for the maintenance any wires, cables or apparatus on his side of the licensee's main fuse or meter.
- (3) Where any installation is re-connected after having been disconnected under section 47 (3) of the Act, the appropriate fee for testing and re-connecting such installation shall be paid in advance by the consumer as provided for in the licence.
- (4) In the event of a leakage of energy at some part of the wires or fittings of any consumer, such consumer shall be liable to pay for all metered consumption of energy in his premises.
- 5. (1) Every consumer wishing at any time after a supply of energy has been given to his premises to use any lamp, fan or motor of greater size than the one already in use or to install any additional lamp or other appliance consuming energy either temporarily or permanently, or in any way to alter or extend the wiring in such premises, shall, at least two days before the commencement of work on such extension or alteration, notify the licensee in writing with particulars of the name and address of the wiring contractor.
- (2) No consumer shall connect or cause to be connected any (2) No consumer shall connect or cause to be connected any extension, lamp, fan or motor of greater size than the one already in use or install any additional lamp or other apparatus consuming energy either temporarily or permanently to the main installation unless such extension, lamp, fan, motor, additional lamp or other apparatus has been inspected and tested and found to be satisfactory by an officer authorised in that behalf by the licensee.
- 6. (1) In the event of the melting of the licensee's fuse in any premises, the consumer shall forthwith inform the officer-in-charge of the electrical power station or sub-station, as the case may be, of the licensee.
- (2) No person other than an officer authorised by the licensee or a workman employed by the licensee shall replace any melted fuse which is the property of the licensee.

- PART IV CEYLON GOVERNMENT GAZETTE Aug. 21, 1959
- (3) Where the services of any officer or workman of the licensee are required to replace any fuse which is the property of the consumer or of the licensee, the appropriate charges as provided for in the licence shall be made in the current monthly account rendered to the consumer.
- 7. The licensee does not hold itself liable to the consumer for any loss or damage occasioned directly or indirectly by the total or partial interruption of the supply of energy.
- 8. Where any installation is re-connected after having been disconnected under section 45 of the Act a fee for testing and re-connecting as provided for in the licence shall be charged, and shall be paid in advance by the consumer.
- 9. (1) All charges shall be deemed to be due on the date on which an account is presented.
- (2) No complaint against the accuracy of an account shall be entertained by the licensee unless such complaint is made within a week after the presentation of the account.
- 10. (1) Every consumer who does not require a supply of energy to his premises shall give in writing three days' notice to the licensee.
- to the hoensee.

 (2) Where the notice referred to in paragraph (1) is not given, the consumer shall be held responsible for the licensee's equipment in his premises and shall be liable to pay for all energy consumed on such premises until the lapse of three days from the date on which the licensee receives notice of the fact that the consumer does not require such supply: Provided, that where the supply to the premises is disconnected by the licensee before the lapse of the said three days, the consumer shall be liable to pay only for the energy consumed on the premises up to the time of such disconnection.
- 11. No consumer shall employ any person other than a person-
 - (a) who has been certified by the Chief Engineer and Manager of the Department of Government Electrical Undertakings, as having the necessary skill to undertake electrical work or who has had at least three years practical experience in a recognised electrical workshop or firm or an electrical power station; and

 (b) who has been regularly engaged for a period of not less than two years in the practice of electrical engineering,

· to-

- (i) carry out any work in connection with the wiring, or the electrical fittings or fixtures, of any new installation in any premises of the consumer, which is intended to be connected to the licensee's electricity supply mains
- electricity supply mains, or

 (ii) carry out or perform in connection with any installation in any premises of the consumer after such installation has been connected to the licensee's electricity supply mains, any electrical work-
 - (a) which consists of, or is in the nature of, alterations, adjustments, additions or repairs to such installation, or
 - (b) which is other than such ordinary replacement of lamps, fans, switches or other component parts as in no way alters or affects the capacity and nature of such installation.
- 12. (1) No electrical work such as installation work including additions, alterations and adjustments to existing installations shall be carried out except after notice of not less than two days has been given to the licensee to enable an officer authorised by the licensee to inspect the proposed work.
- (2) If such officer approves the intended work, he shall settle with the contractor the position of the meter and the work shall be carried out in accordance with such regulations as may be made in that behalf under section 60 of the Act.
- 13. (1) On the completion of any electrical work referred to in regulation 12, such work shall be inspected and tested by an officer authorised in that behalf by the licensee, and
 - (a) if the installation is found to comply with the regulations laid down, a supply of electrical energy to the premises shall be given, and
 - (b) if the installation does not comply with the regulations laid down, a supply of electrical energy to the premises shall not be given until such time as the installation has been made to comply with such regulations
- (2) The fee payable for the inspection and testing of any installation under this regulation shall be paid in advance by the consumer.
- 14. If any electrical work connected with any new installation 14. If any electrical work connected with any new installation in any premises has been carried out without giving notice to the licensee and obtaining the licensee's prior approval, the licensee may refuse to supply electrical energy to the premises wherein such work has been carried out, or may require the consumer to effect such modifications or alterations to the wiring as the officer authorised in that behalf by the licensee may consider necessary. If such modifications or alterations are duly carried out, the installation shall be reinspected and tested by such officer and if found to be in order, a supply of electrical energy to the premises shall be given.

- 15. Where any extension is made to any installation which is already connected to the licensee's electricity supply mains without prior notice to and without the permission of the licensee, the whole installation shall be liable to disconnection from the licensee's electricity supply mains.
- 16. Every application for the reconnection of any installation shall be made on such form as may be provided for the purpose by the licensee, and shall be delivered at the office of the licensee not less than 48 hours before the supply is required.

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ADMINISTRATIVE REGIONS) ORDINANCE, No. 57 OF 1946

IT is hereby notified for general information that the following transfers of Assistant Commissioners of Local Government will take effect from August 25, 1959: -

Mr. M. W. S. Gunaratne—Assistant Commissioner of Local Government, Uva Region, from Badulla to Colombo

(Head Office).

Mr. K. P. E. Piyatilleke—Acting Assistant Commissioner of
Local Government (Head Office) from Colombo to Badulla (temporarily).

E. F. DIAS ABEYSINGHE, Commissioner of Local Government,

Colombo, August 12, 1959.

LOCAL AUTHORITIES (STANDARD BY-LAWS) ACT, No. 6 OF 1952

THE following resolution passed by the Village Committee of Meda Pattu Village area in Kukul Korale in the Ratnapura District under section 3 of the Local Authorities (Standard By-Laws) Act, No. 6 of 1952, is published in terms of that section.

Resolution

The Village Committee of Meda Pattu Village area in Kukul Korale under sub-section (1) of section 3 of the Local Authorities (Standard By-laws) Act, No. 6 of 1952, hereby resolves, with effect from the date on which this resolution is published in the Gazette, to adopt Parts I to XXXVII (both inclusive) of the Standard By-laws framed by the Minister of Local Government, and approved by resolution passed by the Senate and the House of Representatives, notice of which was published in the Gazette No. 10,560 of August 7, 1953.

P. D. A. CHITRAWATHIE, Chairman, V. C., Meda Pattu, Kukul Korale.

Village Committee Office, Kalawana, July 20, 1959.

Examinations, Results of Examinations, &c. LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICE

THE Local Government Service Commission has been pleased to make the following appointments during the month of June,

Municipal Councils.

Mr. K. S. Gunasekera, Stock Inspector, M. C., Colombo Mr. T. F. Jurangpathy, Section Officer, M. C., Colombo Mrs. C. Abeywardena, Assistant Matron, M. C., Colombo Mr. W. Abeydeera, Minor Supervisor, Gr. I, M. C., Colombo Mr. C. Weerakoon, Engineer, M. C., Colombo Mr. W. Don Wilfred, Head Draughtsman, Special Grade, M. C. Colombo

Mr. W. Don Wilfred, Head Draughtsman, Special Grade, M. C., Colombo
Mr. J. B. Tennekoon, Minor Supervisor, Grade I, M. C., Colombo
Mr. D. J. Héttiarachchi, Office Binder, M. C., Colombo
Mr. B. R. Perera, Office Binder, M. C., Colombo
Mr. T. F. Amath, Storekeeper, Grade II, M. C., Galle
*Mr. S. M. Rambanda, Clerk, G.C.C., M. C., Kurunegala
*Mr. D. Samathapala, Clerk, G.C.C., M. C., Kurunegala
Mr. K. Sumanadasa, Sinhalese Translator, M. C., Kurunegala
Mr. V. Kanthasamythurai, Superintendent of Works, Gr. III,
Municipal Council, Jaffna. Municipal Council, Jaffna.

The following appointment was made in March, 1959: *Mr. M. L. D. Jayasena, Clerk, G.C.C., M. C., Colombo.

Urban Councils

Mr. G. N. Jayaweera, Storekeeper, Gr. II. Urban Council, Dehiwala-Mt. Lavinia *Mr. J. M. Hudu Banda, Clerk, G. C. C., Urban Council,

Badulla
*Mr. D. J. Wickrema, Clerk, G. C. C., Urban Council, Kegalla
Mr. A. R. D. Sirisena, Linesman, Grade II, Urban Council, Balangoda.

The following appointment was made in March, 1959. Mr. M. C. Jayatillake, Electrical Superintendent, Grade IV, Urban Council, Balangoda

The following appointment was made in May, 1959. *Mr. P. D. Somawardena, Clerk, G. C. C., U. C., Kotte

Town Councils

*Mr. E. Ramalingam, Clerk, G. C. C., Town Council, Mannar. Mr. R. M. Ukku Banda, Linesman's Mate, Town Council,

Mr. M. W. Perera, Linesman's Mate, Town Council, Kehelwatta

Mr. A. D. G. Alwis, Linesman's Mate, Town Council, Madampe *Mr. N. M. Haleel, Clerk, G. C. C., Town Council, Kalmunai Mr. W. H. Gunadasa, Linesman's Mate, Town Council, Minuwangoda.

Mr. K. A. Sarman, Watcher, Town Council, Matugama

The following appointment was made in April, 1959 Mr. V. A. D. Cyril Appuhamy, Linesman, Gr. II, T. C., Rakwana

Village Committees

*Mr. G. P. Somapala, Clerk, Grade II, Village Committee, Pannala

*Mr. U. G. M. Karunaratne, Clerk, Gr. II, Village Committee, Kaduwela Mr. T. P. J. Fernando, Linesman, Gr. II, Village Committe,

Hanwella-Udugaha Pattu Mr. W. Podiappuhamy, Linesman's Mate, Village Committee, Hanwella-Udugaha Pattu

Mr. J. A. Dingiri Banda, Peon, Village Committee, Gandahe South fr. N. Sinnathurai, Linesman's Mate, Village Committee,

Mr. N. Sinnathurai, Linesman, Gr. II, Village Committee, Mr. A. Emmanuel, Linesman, Gr. II, Village Committee, Godapitiya

Myliady
Mr. A. Emmanuel, Linesman, Gr. 1,
Myliddy
Mr. H. K. Donidasa, Peon, Village Committee, Godapitiya
*Mr. K. Nadarajah, Clerk, Gr. II, Village Committee, Uduvil.
*Mr. H. W. M. Punchi Banda, Clerk, Grade II, Village Committee, Kandapalle No. 2
Mr. T. E. Silva, Linesman's Mate, V. C., Polonnaruwa

W. A. WIJESINHA, Secretary,

Local Government Service Commission.

P. O. Box 530, Colombo, August 14, 1959.

By-laws

L. D.—B. 52/45—L. G. D.—BB. 1177.

THE HORANA URBAN COUNCIL

BY-LAWS made by the Horana Urban Council under sections 166 and 170 of the Urban Councils Ordinance, No. 61 of 1939, and approved by the Minister of Local Government and Housing under section 167 of that Ordinance, as modified by the Proclamation published in Gazette Extraordinary No. 9,773 of September 24, 1947.

V. C. JAYASURIYA, Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Local Government and Housing.

Colombo, August 5, 1959.

By-laws

1. No person shall bring into the urban area for the purposes of sale the carcase of any animal slaughtered outside the urban area, except on the authority of a licence issued by the Chairman or an officer authorised by the Chairman in that behalf.

- 2. No licence shall be issued under by-law 1 except on-
- (a) the production of a certificate from the officer in charge of a public slaughter-house to the effect that the animal was slaughtered at that slaughter-house and the carcase was passed as fit for human consumption; and
- (b) the payment of a fee calculated at the rate of fifty cents for each carcase.
- 3. In these by laws

- " animal" means any sheep, goat, cattle or pig;
 "Chairman" means the Chairman of the Council;
 "Council" means the Horana Urban Council; and
 "urban area" means the area within the administrative
 limits of the Horana Urban Council.

L. D.-B. 97/44-L. G. D.-BB. 1443.

THE KEGALLA URBAN COUNCIL

The Urban Councils Ordinance, No. 61 of 1939

BY-LAWS made by the Kegalla Urban Council under sections 166 and 170 of the Urban Councils Ordinance, No. 61 of 1939, and approved by the Minister of Local Government and Housing by virtue of the powers vested in her by section 167 of by virtue of the powers vested in her by section 167 of that Ordinance, as modified by the Proclamation published in Gazette Extraordinary No. 9,773 of September 24, 1947.

V. C. JAYASURIYA, Permanent Secretary,

Ministry of Local Government and Housing.

Colombo, August 5, 1959.

BY-LAWS

- - (a) a Lending Library;
 - (b) a Reference Library; and (c) a Reading Room.
- 2. The supervision and general administration of the public library shall be vested in the Chairman.
- 3. A librarian appointed by the Local Government Service Commission shall be in charge of the public library, and he shall be responsible for the maintenance of order in such library.
- 4. The Council may set up an Advisory Committee (hereinafter referred to as the "Committee"), composed of-

 - (a) the Chairman for the time being of the Council;(b) such other members of the Council as may be elected by the Council; and
 - (c) six prominent residents of the urban area elected by the Council.
- 5 (1) The Chairman shall be ex-officio President of the Committee. In the absence of the Chairman at any meeting, such member of the Committee as may be elected for the purpose by the other members present, shall preside at the meeting.
- (2) At any meeting the President, and in the absence of the President, the presiding member shall have an original vote and a casting vote if the votes cast on any question are equal.
- 6. No business shall be transacted at any meeting of the Committee unless there is a quorum of four members.
- 7. The power to allow any person to use any part of the premises of the public library shall rest with the Council.

Lending Library .

- 8. (1) No person shall be admitted as a member of the Lending Library unless he—
- (a) is not less than fourteen years of age;(b) is literate;
- (c) is resident or has an office or place of business, within the urban area, or is a student who attends a school within the urban area; and
 (d) deposits as security such amount as may be fixed by the
- Council.
- (2) Every person desirous of being admitted as a member of the Lending Library shall make an application in that behalf on a form obtainable from the librarian, and shall furnish one surety, approved by the Chairman, who undertakes to pay the value of any book which may be lost or injured by the person for whom he stands surety.
- 9. Any member who desires to borrow any book from the Lending Library shall sign his name in a register kept for that purpose before such book is removed from the Lending Library, and such member shall be responsible for the return of such book to the Lending Library. book to the Lending Library.

- 10. No member shall be entitled to borrow more than two books at a time from the Lending Library.
- 11. Any book borrowed by a member from the Lending Library shall be returned to the librarian within a period of fourteen days from the date on which it is borrowed. Such member may be allowed by the librarian to borrow such book for a further period of fourteen days if such book is not required by any other member.
- 12. Where a member fails to return any book he has borrowed from the Lending Library within thirty days of the expiry of the period of fourteen days referred to in by law 11, such book shall be presumed to be lost.
- 13. Where a book borrowed by a member is lost or is presumed to be lost, such member shall be liable to pay the cost of its replacement. The value of such book may be recovered, in the discretion of the Chairman, from the member's security deposit or from his surety.
- 14. No member shall damage or injure in any manner any book he has borrowed from the Lending Library.
- 15. It shall be the duty of every member to bring to the notice of the librarian any damage or injury in any book he intends to borrow from the Lending Library. Where he has failed to bring any such damage or injury to the notice of the librarian, such book shall be presumed to have been issued to him without any injury or damage.
- 16. Where the librarian is satisfied that a book returned by a member has been so damaged by him as to render it unfit for further circulation, such member shall be liable to pay the cost of its replacement. When the book has been replaced, the damaged book shall be given to that member with the words "The Public Library—sold as damaged" stamped thereon.
- . 17 (1) No member shall lend to any person any book borrowed by him from the Lending Library.
- (2) Any person who contravenes the provisions of paragraph (1) of this by-law shall forfeit his deposit and cease to be a member of the Lending Library.
- 18. (1) No member shall return to the Lending Library any book which to his knowledge has been used by any person suffering from an infectious or contagious disease.
- (2) Where a book borrowed from the Lending Library by a member has been used by any person suffering from any infectious or contagious disease, such book shall be destroyed and that member shall pay to the librarian the cost of its replacement.
- 19. Where any dispute arises between two or more members of the Lending Library as to which member should borrow a particular book, the librarian shall decide such dispute.
- 20. Any member who desires to borrow any book which has already been borrowed by any other member, shall enter his name and the title of the book in a register kept for that purpose, and the librarian shall, on such book being returned by the member who borrowed it, issue it to the member who has entered his name in the register. Where two or more members have entered their names in the register for any book, such book shall be issued to them in the order in which they have entered their names in the register.
- 21. Any member who ceases to reside, or have an office or place of business within the urban area or attend a school within the urban area, as the case may be, shall cease to be a member of the Lending Library and shall return to the librarian any book in his possession which has been borrowed from the Lending Library. The security deposit furnished by him, less any sum due from him, shall be returned to him.
- 22. The Lending Library shall be kept open on such days and during such hours as may be fixed by resolution of the Council.

Reference Library

- 23. No person shall make use of the Reference Library unless he
 - (a) has obtained permission from the librarian for that purpose; and
- (b) has signed the register kept in the Reference Library.
- 24. The librarian may permit any person who-
- (a) is literate;
- (b) is resident, or has an office or place of business, within the urban area, or is a student who attends a school within the urban area; and
- (c) is not less than fourteen years of age, to make use of the Reference Library.
- 25. No person shall take out of the Reference Library any book issued to him for purposes of reference.
- 26. The Reference Library shall be kept open on such days and during such hours that the Lending Library is kept open.

Reading Room

- 27. The librarian may permit any person who-
- (a) is literate;
- (b) is resident, or has an office or place of business, within the urban area, or is a student who attends a school within the urban area; and

 (c) is not less than fourteen years of age, to make use of the
- Reading Room.
- 28. No person shall remove from the Reading Room any newspaper, periodical, magazine, map, document, manuscript or any other article placed in or belonging to the Reading Room.
- 29. The Reading Room shall be kept open on such days and during such hours that the Lending Library is kept open.

General

- 30. No person who is suffering or has recently suffered from any contagious, infectious or cutaneous disease or has recently been in attendance on any person suffering from such disease, shall enter the premises of the public library until the periods of infection and incubation have elapsed.
 - 31. No person shall-

 - behave in any disorderly manner or commit any nuisance in cr about the premises of the public library;
 damage or in any way deface any portion of the building, or any property of the Council in or about the public library;
 remain or loiter about the premises of the public library
 - (3) remain or lotter about the premises of the public library after such library is closed without being able to give a satisfactory account of himself;
 (4) smoke or spit within the premises of the public library;
 (5) gamble with dice or cards or play any game within the premises of the public library;
 (6) disturb the users of the public library by shouting, singing songs or making any other noise in such library;
 (7) enter the premises of the public library in an unclean condition;

 - condition;

 - (8) bring any dog or other animal into the premises of the public library;
 (9) sleep or eat any food in any part of the public library; or
 (10) obstruct the librarian or any person acting under the orders of the librarian, in the lawful exercise of the librarian's powers under these by-laws.
- 32. Every contravention of by-law 28, by-law 30 or by-law 31 shall be punishable with a fine not exceeding fifty rupees.

Interpretation

33. In these by laws-

33. In these by laws—
"Council" means the Kegalla Urban Council;
"Chairman" means the Chairman of the Council;
"Librarian" means a person appointed by the Local Government Service Commission to be in charge of the public library, and includes his assistants; and
"Urban area" means the area within the administrative limits of the Kegalla Urban Council.

L. D.—B. 22/50—L. G. D.—BC. 539.

THE TELDENIYA TOWN COUNCIL

The Town Councils Ordinance, No. 3 of 1946

BY-LAW made by the Teldeniya Town Council under Sections 166 and 170 of the Town Councils Ordinance, No. 3 of 1946, and approved by the Minister of Local Government and Housing under section 167 of that Ordinance, as modified by the Proclamation published in Gazette Extraordinary No. 9,773 of September 24, 1947.

V. C. JAYASURIYA,
Permanent Secretary,
Ministry of Local Government and Housing.

Colombo, August 5, 1959.

BY-LAW

The standard by laws relating to the supply of water, adopted by the Teldeniya Town Council, are hereby amended as

- (1) in paragraph (1) of by-law 29, in sub-paragraph (b) thereof, by the substitution, for the figures "25", of the figure "5";
- (2) in paragraph (1) of by-law 40, by the substitution, for the words "in accordance with such rates as may be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Council", of the words "at the rate of ten rupees per year or part thereof in respect of the first tap in any premises and at the rate of two rupees per year or part thereof in respect of each additional tap in the same premises."; and

(3) by the substitution, for paragraph (2) of by law 41, of the following paragraph:—

"(2) Where water is supplied to any private service for other than domestic purposes otherwise than by meter, the following charges shall be paid in advance to the Council:—

Where the premises are occupied wholly or in part-

-		onti iyme	
•		Rs.	c.
(a) as a dairy—			
(i) for the first tap		10	0
(ii) for each additional tap	•••	1	0
(b) as a tea kiosk, coffee boutique, restaura eating house, hotel, lodging house or bakery			,
(i) for the first tap		5	0
(ii) for each additional tap	•••	1,	. 0
(c) as an aerated water manufactory or so manufactory—	ар		
(i) for the first tap		7	0
(ii) for each additional tap		1'	0
(d) as a textile shop, sundry boutique or bard saloon—	er		
	_	4nna ayma	
(i) for the first tap	. 1	0 0)
(ii) for each additional tap		2 () ''

Notices under the Local Authorities Elections Ordinance

THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES ELECTIONS ORDINANCE, No. 53 OF 1946

IT is hereby notified under section 67 (2) of the Local Authorities Elections Ordinance, No. 53 of 1946, as amended by the Local Authorities Elections (Amendment) Acts, No. 5 of 1949 and No. 25 of 1953, that the candidates whose names appear in the Schedule below have been elected to represent the wards of the Local Authorities noted against their names.

E. F. DIAS ABEYESINGHE, Acting Commissioner of Elections (Local Bodies).

Colombo, August 17, 1959.

Schedule

Ward No.

Name of Candidate

KANDY DISTRICT

Udabulathgama Pasbage Korale Village Committee

6 ... Sakrapedigedara Jayawardhana

MATALE DISTRICT

Udugoda Pallesiya Pattu Village Committee

12 ... E. G. Ranhamy

GALLE DISTRICT

Wanduramba Village Committee

8 ... Thalahitiye Vithanage Ceasel

KEGALLE DISTRICT

Panawal Korale (East & West) Village Committee

6 ... Rangegama Gamladdalage Wickremasinghe

THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES ELECTIONS ORDINANCE, No. 53 OF 1946

IT is hereby notified under section 37 of the Local Authorities Elections Ordinance, No. 53 of 1946, as amended by the Local Authorities Elections (Amendment) Acts, No. 5 of 1949 and No. 25 of 1953, that the candidates whose names appear in the Schedule below have been elected to represent the Wards of the Local Authorities noted against their names.

E. F. DIAS ABEYESINGHE, Acting Commissioner of Elections (Local Bodies).

Colombo, August 17, 1959.

Schedule

Ward No.

Name of Candidate

JAFFNA DISTRICT

Puloly Village Committee

1 ... Moothathamby Ponniah

MANNAR DISTRICT

Panankamam Village Committee

4 ... Vellayan Kadirgamu

PUTTALAM DISTRICT

Munnessaram Pattu Village Committee

5 ... Sugathadasa Wickramanayake

Anamaduwa Village Committee

 Adikari Mudiyanselage Banda Hitapu Vidanege Mudiyanse

MATALE DISTRICT

Asgiri Pallesiya Pattu Village Committee

14 ... Seiyadu Mohamed Marjan

Gampahasiya Pattu Village Committee

8 ... P. B. Gamagedera Ranasinghe

NUWARA ELIYA DISTRICT

·Udapalata Village Committee

6 ... Dissanayake Mudiyanselage Appuhamy

Pallepane Village Committee

18 ... Samaratunga Mudiyanselage Dingiri Banda

POLONNARUWA DISTRICT

Egoda Pattu Village Committee

6 ... Nagamany Kanapathi Pillai

BADULLA DISTRICT

Rilpola Village Committee

6 ... Wellendawe Gamage Francis

Budgets

THE KALUTARA URBAN COUNCIL

1st Supplementary Budget for the Year 1959

Head and Sub-head			Amour	it		
			Rs.	c.		
J.—(6) Electricity Department—Extensions			850	0		Resolution No. 6 of 21.3.59
B.—(7) Thoroughfares, Acquisition			2,254	81		Resolution No. 14 of 25.4.59
B.—(12) Do. New Works			7,500	0		Resolution No. 15 of 25.4.59
E.—(1) (g) Public health, drainage construction			4,245	55 .	٠.	Resolution No. 16 of 16.5.59
B.—(2) Thoroughfares, maintenance			24,449	49		Resolution No. 10 of 29.6.59
D.—(10) Council lands and buildings, sea erosion		٠	2,000	0		Resolution No. $11(b)$ do.
D.—(10) Do,			2,820	0	٠.	Resolution No. 11(c) do.
E.—(5) (d) Public health, acquisition	• •		6,130	0		Resolution No. $16(b)$ do.
A(3) Refunds			10,000	0		Resolution No. 15 of 25.7.59
A.—(4) Contributions and grants	• •		100	0		do.
D.—(4) Council lands and buildings, maintenance				0		do.
E.—(3) (e) Public health, maintenance of latrines	• •		1,350	0		do.
J.—(2) (e) Electricity Department, Maintenance of s			325	0		do.
J.—(3) (a) Do. Service and house		iterial	2,000	0		do
J_{\bullet} (4) (d) Do. Printing and state	ionery		2,000	0		do.
J(8) Do. Refunds	• •		100	0	٠.	do.
•		, -				
			83,374	85		•
		-				

Settled and adopted at Council Meetings held on March 21, April 25, May 16, June 29 and July 25, 1959.

Office of the Urban Council Kalutara, August 10, 1959. K. M. WICKREMASINGHE. Chairman.

Sale of Properties

THE GALLE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL

Sale of Properties for Arrears of Rates

NOTICE is hereby given that in the absence of movable property liable for seizure, (1) Rent and profits from 1 to 10 years, (2) Timber and produce, (3) Materials of house, and (4) the undermentioned properties themselves, seized in virtue of a warrant issued by the Municipal Commissioner in terms of section 252 of the Municipal Councils Ordinance, No. 29 of 1947, for arrears of assessment rates due on the premises mentioned in the subjoined Schedule up to the end of 4th quarter 1958, will be sold by public auction on the spot at the time therein mentioned unless in the meantime the amount due as assessment rates and costs be duly paid. costs be duly paid.

By order,

D. C. C. FERDINANDO, for Municipal Commissioner.

The Municipal Council, Town Hall, Galle, August 10, 1959.

SCHEDITLE

The time of sales to commence on the first mentioned premises at 9 a.m. on each day.

FORT WARD NO. 1

Wednesday, October 7, 1959

Chando Street: 4, 6, 8/6, 14. Church Street: 31, 33, 43, 47, 51, 53, 57, 59, 59A, 67, 73, 75, 30, 34, 36, 50, 52/1, 64, 66, 78, 82. Front Cross Street: 1, 3, 3/1, 3/2, 3/3, 5, 5/1, 5/2, 5/3, 5/4, 5/5, 5/6, 5/7, 5/8, 7, 7/1, 9, 11.

Friday, October 9, 1959

Great Modera Baay Street: 1, 6, 12, 14, 18. Hospital Street: 14, 16, 24, 26, Leyn Baan Street: 9, 11, 13, 25, 31, 33, 35, 37, 39, 61, 63, 73, 79, 83, 85, 87, 89, 38, 40, 42, 52, 54, 56, 58, 70, 72, 74, 80, 82, 84, 86, 90, 66A, 66B.

Tuesday, October 13, 1959

Light House Street: 25, 35, 37, 39, 61, 63, 67, 38, 50, 54, 80, 84, 86.

Middle Street: 1, 1A, 24. Parawa Street: 3, 9, 11, 13, 2, 4, 8.

Thursday, October 15, 1959

Pedlar Street: 7 & 9, 19, 21, 23, 31, 35, 43, 47, 49, 53, 67, 71, 6, 16, 18, 20, 24, 38, 40, 42, 54, 76, 78, 80, 82, 84, 86, 92, 96, 100, 102, 106.

Rämpart Street: 3, 27, 29, 39.

Small Cross Street: 1, 2, 4, 8.

Small Modera Baay Street: 2, 2A, 2/1, 4.

THE GALLE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL

Sale of Properties for Arrears of Rates

NOTICE is hereby given that in the absence of movable property liable for seizure, (1) Rent and profits from 1 to 10 years, (2) Timber and produce, (3) Materials of house, and (4) the undermentioned properties themselves, seized in virtue of a warrant issued by the Municipal Commissioner in terms of section 252 of the Municipal Councils Ordinance, No. 29 of 1947, for arrears of assessment rates due on the premises mentioned in the subjoined Schedule up to the end of 4th quarter 1958, will be sold by public auction on the spot at the time therein mentioned by public auction on the spot at the time therein mentioned unless in the meantime the amount due as assessment rates and costs be duly paid.

By order,

D. C. C. FERDINANDO, for Municipal Commissioner.

The Municipal Council, Town Hall, Galle, August 10, 1959.

SCHEDULE

The time of sales to commence on the first mentioned premises at 9 a.m. on each day.

CHINAGARDEN WARD NO. 2

Tuesday, October 20, 1959

Chinagarden Middle Road: 1, 29/7, 29/8, 33, 39, 43, 71/1, 71/2, 79, 89A, 2, 22/1, 22/5, 32, 34, 42, 46, 48/1, 50, 52, 54, 88, 90, 94.

88, 90, 94.
Chinagarden Cross Road: 4, 10.
Chinagarden Ropewalk: 35, 37/3, 14, 24, 26, 28, 28A, 40, 40/1, 40/2, 40/3, 40/4, 40/5, 40/6, 40/17, 40/18, 40/19; 40/20, 42, 44, 46, 46/1, 50, 52, 54, 56, 56/1, 30/5, 32, 32/1, 34.

Thursday, October 22, 1959

Dickson Road: 7, 9A, 23/4, 23/4A, 23/5, 27, 27/1, 27/2, 27/3, 27/5, 27/7, 27/8, 27/10, 37/1, 37/2, 39, 39/1, 39/2.

Havelock Place: 5, 11, 17, 21, 23, 41/4, 8, 12, 32, 34, 44, 62, 78A, 84, 84/1, 86, 88, 90, 92, 94, 96.

Tuesday, October 27, 1959

Main Street: 21, 31, 53, 59, 61, 2, 4, 6, 8. Old Cripps Road: 7, 2/1, 2/2, 2/4, 4, 12, 14, 14/1. Sea Street: 1, 3. Talbot Town Road: 2, 6, 8A, 10, 28, 34 & 36, 38, 40, 42. Talbot Town Cross Road 2: 2, 4, 6, 8, 12, 14, 16, 18. Talbot Town Cross Road 3: 2.

Thursday, October 29, 1959

Wackwella Road: 47, 49/4, 49/5, 71/1, 71/2, 79, 81, 81/1, 85, 87, 87/2, 87/3, 87/4, 89, 91, 93, 93/1, 97, 99, 103, 125/2, 125, 127, 135, 135A, 137, 139, 143/1, 145, 147, 149, 14, 16.

Monday, November 2, 1959

Wackwella Road: 36, 42/1, 58/5, 58/8, 58/9, 58/10, 66, 70/1, 70/2, 70/3, 70/8, 70/10, 70/11, 78/2, 78/4, 78/6, 78/7, 78/8, 78/9, 78/10, 78/11, 78/12, 78/13, 78/14, 78/15, 78/17, 78/18, 78/19, 78/20.

Wednesday, November 4, 1959

Wackwella Road: 78/22, 78/21, 78/23, 78/24, 82, 84, 86/1, 86/2, 86/4, 86/5, 86/7, 86/8, 86/10, 98, 100, 102, 104, 106, 108/1, 108/2, 108/3, 108/4, 108/4A, 124, 124/1, 126, 128, 132, 72, 125B,

THE NEGOMBO MUNICIPAL COUNCIL Sale of Immovable Properties

NOTICE is hereby given that in the absence of movable property liable to seizure: (1) rents and profits from 1 to 10 years, (2) timber and produce, (3) materials of house, and (4) the undermentioned properties themselves, seized in virtue of a warrant issued by the Mayor of Negombo, in terms of section 252 of the Municipal Councils Ordinance, No. 29 of 1947, for arrears of assessment rates due on the premises mentioned in the subjoined Schedule up to the end of the Fourth Quarter, 1956, will be sold by public auction on the spot on the dates herein mentioned, sale commencing at the first-named premises at 9 a.m. each day, unless in the meantime the amount of rates and costs be duly paid.

T. WIJAYAPALA MENDIS,

The Municipal Office Negombo, August 8, 1959.

SCHEDULE

WARD NO. 1

September 21, 1959

Mankuliya Road: 11/4, 27/1, 35/15, 12/5, 36/11. San Niculativu Road: 11, 13/4, 13/5, 17, 17/3, 17/8, 17/8A, 17/10, 17/11, 25/12, 39A, 39/9, 51/8, 51/17, 61/4A, 61/7.

September 22, 1959

San Niculativu Road: 73/5, 75/1, 89/1, 89/3, 91/1, 121/3, 125/9, 127A, 131/5, 6/2, 6/3, 16/7A, 16/19, 76/5, 82/1, 94/3, 100/4, 110/2, 110/5, 110/6, 146/4.

WARD NO. 2

September 23, 1959

Alles Road: 7, 19/3.
Canal Bank West: 61/5, 61/8, 105.
First Cross Street: 11.
Fifth Cross Street: 18.
Mudaliyar's Road: 41.
Muhandirampitiya Road: 27/8, 27/9, 43, 43/1.
Selby Road: 71/3, 109/1, 109/2, 111, 113/2.
St. Mary's Lane: 31, 14/1.
St. Mary's Street: 55, 99, 16.

ward no. 3

Alles Road: 66, 72/1. Sea Street: 163/4, 167, 110/4, 132/1, 190.

WARD NO. 4

September 24, 1959

Alles Road: 41/4, 51/3, 59/1, 63/1, 63/6, 63/7, 67/3, 73/1, 77, 99/6, 99/7, 99/7A, 99/8. Anderson Road: 11/1, 27, 6, 12, 22A, 22/4, 26/1, 26/3.

September 25, 1959

Beach Road: 5/4, 5/5, 5/7, 5/8, 5/9, 5/10, 15/1, 12, 12/1, 16

Canal Road: 29.
Chilaw Road: 93/7, 113.
Kirthisinghe Place: 17, 19.
Lewis Place: 7, 31/3, 31/3A, 105, 14, 24/6, 38/1, 38/2, 38/3, 38/7, 38/8, 38/9, 38/11, 40/1, 40/2, 40/6A, 40/10, 40/11, 44/2, 44/3, 44/5

September 26, 1959

Rosary Road: 4, 8, 12, 12/1, 14/2, 18A, 18/1A. Sea Street: 238, 248/2, 248/4, 248/5, 248/6, 217, 231/1, 231/3, 231/10A, 231/11A, 231/13, 231/14, 231/15, 281/18, 281/19, 231/21, 231/22, 233/4, 233/8, 233/10, 237/1, 237/6, 237/7.

· September 28, 1959

Sea Street: 243/3, 243/4A, 243/5, 243/8, 245/4, 245/5A, 245/15, 251/3, 251/5, 251/7, 251/10, 251/11, 251/11A, 253/3, 253/3A, 253/4, 253/5, 253/7.

St. Rita's Road: 5, 7/2, 11/2, 11/5A, 11/6, 11/6A, 26/1, 26/2,

Sooriya Road: 18.

WARD NO. 5

September 29, 1959

Adnives Road: 27/1, 27/2, 57, 59, 54, 80/3, 80/4. Anderson Road: 99/7, 115/1A, 115/2, 115/4, 119/1, 125/1, 68A, 74/1, 74/1A, 84, 88/3.

Canal Road: 12/1. Chilaw Road: 175.

Ethukala Road: 31/1, 31/1A, 35, 37, 32, 32/7.

September 30, 1959

Lewis Place: 153, 58, 60, 60/2, 62, 62/1, 62/6, 64/2, 64/3, 64/5, 66/1, 66/1A, 66/1B, 66/2, 72, 78/2, 80/1, 82/4, 98, 98/3, 106/3, 108/13, 108/14, 110/5A.

October 1, 1959

Lewis Place: 116/3, 124/1, 148/5, 164/1, 176/3.
Perera Place: 17/4, 17/4A, 4, 10/7, 20/1A, 20/3, 20/4.
Rosary Road: 9, 11/2, 35.
Rosary Lane: 17, 19, 27, 33, 35, 43/2, 45, 51, 53, 55, 69/1, 69/2, 69/3, 69/6, 71, 73.

October 2, 1959

St. Anthony's Road: 33, 33/1, 67/4, 20A, 50, 50/1, 50/2, 58,

WARD NO. 6

October 5, 1959

Chilaw Road: 134/2. Colombo Road: 57A.

Fernando Avenue: 2, 14. Hunupitiya Road: 1/3, 24, 32/3, 34/2, 34/3. Main Street: 349/IA, 349/IB, 355/2, 355/3, 357, 359/1, 361.

Annavis Lane: 8.

WARD NO. 7 October 6, 1959

Chilaw Road: 426, 424. Mirigama Road: 91/8, 91/8A. Mosque Road: 59/7A, 59/6, 61/13, 61/16, 67/5A, 67/7, 67/8. St. Lazarus Road: 5, 7, 34/2A, 34/3, 54, 126/12, 126/12A, 126/12B.

WARD NO. 8

October 7, 1959

Colombo Road: 200/2. Kundanwila Road:

WARD NO. 9

Katuwapitiya Road: 11, 37/1. Temple Road: 105/6, 91A, 54. Weboda Road South: 13/1.

WARD NO. 10

October 8, 1959

Canal Bank East Road: 4. Canal Bank East Road: 4.
Colombo Road: 268, 270, 276, 280, 282, 298/11, 326.
Grand Street: 28, 88/1.
Greens Road: 92/5, 92/8.
Leitan's Lane: 31.
Leo De Croos Road: 5, 2.
Paradise Road: 1, 18, 22/1.
Rajapakse Broadway: 13.

October 9, 1959

St. John's Road: 1, 3, 9, 10/2, 12A, 14/2A. St. Joseph's Street: 15, 65/1, 65/2, 65/3, 44, 124/7, 222, 224, 226, 228, 230.

Taladuwa Road: 59/1, 145/4, 151, 167, 239, 72/1, 150/1, 164, 164/1, 166, 168/1, 109/6, 67, 140.

WARD NO. 11

October 12, 1959

Colombo Road: 228/7, 223/8, 241, 241/2, 247, 247/1, 249, 251/1, 283/1, 283/3, 335/21, 337/4A, 400/2, 410/3, 410/5, 424, 424A, 428/2, 450/2 and 3, 456/5, 456/8, 400/11. Bolawalana Mawata: 25, 8/3, 11/9, 16, 22, 36, 38, 38/1.

PART IV - CEYLON GOVERNMENT GAZETTE - Aug. 21, 1959

October 13, 1959

Convent Road: 35, 10/5 and 6, 12, 36, 54.

Kimbulapitiya Road: 26/3, 28, 32/1A, 32/5, 32/6, 46, 58/1, 62, 102/6, 138.

Minuwangoda Road: 35/2, 45, 59, 71/1, 101/2, 113, 123/1, 127, 147.

October 14, 1959

Minuwangoda Road: 20, 64/1, 64/4, 84, 86/1, 86/7, 92, 94, 98, 110, 124, 126, 134/1, 138, 154/1, 166, 168, 168/1, 170, 172/1, 172/2, 178/2.

October 15, 1959

Parakrama Road: 29/5, 29/6.

Sri Wickrema Rajasinghe Road: 67/4, 67/5, 71, 14/1. Taladuwa Road: 3 and 7, 29/1, 29/2, 29/6, 29/7, 29/8.

Weboda Road South: 91/1, 99/2, 113/1, 117A, 86, 88, 94/1, 134, 166/1, 198/1, 198/2, 200, 112A.

WARD NO. 12

October 16, 1959

Colombo Road: 455, 457, 459, 461\AA , 607, 609, 474, 476/3, 494/1, 524, 524/2, 524/3, 526, 528, 530/3, 538, 538\AA , 546/6, 560/10 and 11, $560/11\text{\AA}$, 560/15, 562/8, 624/6.

October 19, 1959

Mangala Road: 9, 16, 2, 21.

Gamini Road: 8/1, 14, 14/1. Kurana Lane: 15/2A, 16.

Sri Wickrema Rajasinghe Road: 99, 103/1, 159A, 155/8, 161/28A, 161/30, 161/36, 187/19, 189/2A, 189/3, 189/6, 193/2, 193/2A, 193/3 and 4, 193/5, 193/5A, 193/5B, 88/1, 88/2, 98,

October 20, 1959

Anne's Road: 13/3, 13/4, 13/6, 27/7, 34/3, 44/1, 34/11, 66, 66A, 68/1, 74, 76.

Weboda Road: 185/1, 207/1, 207, 247, 231/2, 249, 222, 284, 284/1, 288/7 and 8, 288/10, 288/10A, 298/3.

Wijaya Road: 32, 34.

Miscellaneous Notices

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF KURUNEGALA

Supplementary Budget No. 2 for the year 1959

NOTICE is hereby given, in terms of section 214 (2) (b) of the Municipal Councils Ordinance, No. 29 of 1947, that the Supplementary Budget No. 2 of the Municipal Council of Kurunegala for the year 1959, will be open for public inspection at the Municipal Office, Kurunegala for seven days commencing from August 22, 1959.

A. M. M. SHERIFF, Mayor of Kurunegala.

The Municipal Office, Kurunegala, August 14, 1959.

THE WELIGAMA TOWN

The Butchers Ordinance

NOTICE is hereby given under section 7 of the Butchers (Amendment) Ordinance, No. 44 of 1947, that the person mentioned in the Schedule hereunder has made an application to me for carrying on the trade of butcher as set in the said Schedule, during the period August, 1959 to 31st December, 1959.

Any person residing within the limits of the Town of Weligama, who desires to object to the issue of licence for carrying on such trade, should furnish to me in duplicate within fourteen days from the date of publication of this notice, a written statement of the grounds of his objection for the issue of such licence.

SCHEDULE

Name of applicant M. I. A. Hassen

Name of premises 299, Main Street, Weligama.

P. K. Dissanayaka, Special Commissioner, Weligama Town.

Office of the Special Commissioner. Weligama, 15th August, 1959.